Questions Pertaining to NASA/KSC RFQ 10-03-0019


1. Question:  Why has the scope of work increased beyond a commercial buy for payload processing services?  The expansion in scope of the government insight/approval under article 14, specifically:

a. Payload Per-Ship Facility Inspection

· Approval is required for - Mission Specific Safety Requirements Tailoring (this is a new requirement)

· Insight is required for - Safety procedures and processes (this is a new requirement)

b. Equipment/Payload Offload, Transport, and Delivery

· Insight is required for - Safety procedures and processes (the word "processes" is a new requirement)

c. Payload Processing Facility and Services

· Approval is required for - Payload Processing Facility Cleanliness (this is a new requirement and seems redundant based on the fact that the approval of COFR covers this)

· Insight is required for - Mishap Reports (this is a new requirement and seems redundant based on the other items in this section)

d. New and Modified Payload Processing Facilities and Systems

· Approval is required for - Pressure systems (this is a new requirement)

· Approval is required for - Safety systems.... (this is a new requirement)

Answer:  In comparison to a NASA processing contract that is several years old, the requirements contained in this solicitation may appear to be significantly different.  But just as KSC has updated its procedures and processes to ensure increased safety and mission assurance over the years, so has industry.  Updates to these types of requirements are therefore not increases over and above a static commercial standard but instead reflect the dynamic response of KSC and industry to safety and mission assurance issues.  Regardless of whether or not approvals and insights appear redundant, they are still a requirement for a Class 10K mission.  Changes also include Lessons-learned, close-calls during processing, customer feedback responses, and heightened attention to safety and mission success that has influenced the necessity for this insight.  

2. Question:  Why is a technical and management proposal required when there are already two qualified west coast payload processing companies, as a result of earlier NASA competitive procurements and NASA satellite processing operations at these companies’ facilities? 

Answer:  This procurement is being conducted under full and open competition conditions, and is not limited to any certain number of offerors.  We cannot assume that we will only receive offers from companies with known capability or that we will be fully familiar with all proposers’ technical and management capabilities, so in order to treat all offerors equally, we have requested technical and management proposals from all offerors.  Further, this procurement, while similar, is a separate contract from any previous work and capabilities must be assessed for the requirements of this contract. 

3. Question:  Will this contract have options for future MELV Spacecraft missions? 

Answer:  The AURA mission payload processing contract will not contain any options for future MELV or other spacecraft missions.

4. Question:  SF1449 Block 8:  the due date for proposal submittal is not indicated.

Answer: The due date at the present time is May 13, 2003 at 4:30 PM Eastern Daylight Time, which is stated in the RFQ Amendment 1 notice posted on the NASA Acquisition Internet Service (NAIS).
5. Question:  Article 29, Paragraph C, Subparagraph 1, Page 42 of 48:  can the electronic copies of the proposal be submitted in CDROM format rather than ZipDisks or 3.5” diskettes?

Answer:  Yes, CD ROM format for electronic copies is acceptable.

6. Question:  Article 29, Paragraph C, Subparagraph 2(a), Page 42 of 48:  the RFQ states that a font size smaller than 12-point may be used in figures and graphics.  Does this also include Tables?

Answer:  Smaller font size may be used in the tables, but no smaller than 10 point.
7.  Question:  Ref. ARTICLE 7, Time of Performance:  Are there any special requirements to removal of all GSE for the facility (30 days after launch), since the Aqua GSE was removed in less than 14 days?

Answer:  There are no special requirements; GSE removal no later than 30 days is our standard requirement upon our NASA spacecraft customers.

8. Question:  Ref. ARTICLE 14, Government Insight and Approval:  Does the added scope of government insight increase the number and duration of NASA personnel and their contractors at the payload processing facility? 

Answer: Yes.

9. Question:  Ref. ARTICLE 17, Mission Success:  What are the special requirements requiring a 40 day COFR?

Answer:  A COFR is required no later than 40 days to ensure adequate time to resolve any open items or any schedule impacts.

10. Question:  Ref. ARTICLE 18, Payment Schedule, Para (d):  Can the first two payment milestones be split 20% for the contract award milestone and 30% for the 3 days prior to Initial Facility Occupancy Date milestone?  Currently stated at 5% and 45% respectively. 

Answer:  We have reviewed your request, but maintain that the existing 5% / 45% milestone payment percentages are appropriate for the associated performance milestones.  

11.  Ref.  Para. 1.1 Scope and Para 3.1.2.1, Payload Processing Support:

a. Question:  What is the scope of work for advanced planning working sessions? 

Answer: The scope of work for Aura advanced planning working sessions is weekly telecons and quarterly Ground Operations Working Group meetings.

b. Question:  Can the advanced planning task be a separate CLN, on a cost reimbursement basis for hours expended?

Answer: The “Payload Planning Support” is considered an integral part of the statement of work and shall be included under the firm fixed price of the contract.
12. Ref.  Para. 1.3, Payload Processing:

a. Question:  Is the scope of work for contractors support to cancellation or postponement a contract add-on or will NASA provide scope of work prior to final pricing?

Answer:  In the event of a postponement or cancellation, the Contractor shall be responsible for providing the same range of capabilities (facilities, services) that are provided during normal payload processing.  As such, the scope of this activity is already specified in the contract.   Should such an activity cause NASA to exceed its allotted Facility Occupancy Period, a pricing adjustment may be incorporated in accordance with applicable contract terms.

13. Ref. Para. 2.1, Facility:

a. Question:  Is the contractor the lead organization or in a support role to work with the Range on RF and magnetic environment issues?

Answer:  PPF is in a support role to the NASA-KSC Resident Office and their contractor, Analex, for RF or magnetic environment issues.

b. Question:  Does NASA intend to provide the external RF environment or RF facility shielding requirements?

Answer:  Yes, NASA will provide the shielding requirements.

14. Ref. Para. 2.2, Facility Systems:

a. Question:  What are the critical systems requiring backup capability?

Answer:  Critical facility systems needing backup capability are power and air handling systems. 

15. Ref. Para. 2.2.1, Mechanical Systems:

a. Question:  Is the annual crane certification required by OSHA and EWR 127-1 sufficient prior to the mission or is an additional rated load test required?

Answer: The annual proof-load certification is acceptable.  No additional load testing is required provided that the annual certification does not expire prior to completion of processing.
16. Ref. Para. 2.2.1, Mechanical Systems:

a. Question:  Are ASHRAE guidelines for HVAC design applicable to existing facility HVAC systems?

Answer:  The Contractor shall show evidence that existing facility HVAC systems are in compliance with ASHRE design guidelines applicable when the system was installed or last modified.  In addition the Contractor shall show evidence that existing facility HVAC systems are currently being operated and maintained per those guidelines.
17. Ref. Para. 2.2.2, Electrical Systems:

a. Question:  Is the contractor required to re-certify the electrical design of existing systems?

Answer:  The SOW requires “The Contractor shall ensure that the electrical systems are designed, operated, and maintained in accordance with the NEC and the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) where applicable.”  It does not require the contractor to “re-certify” them.  The Contractor should be able to provide evidence that their systems meet this requirement.

18. Ref. Para. 2.3, Services:

a. Question:  Can the fueling operations contiguous areas include an adjacent processing cell?

Answer:  Yes.

19.  Ref. Para. 3.1.3, NASA Insight and Approval:

a. Question:  Has a COTR been assigned to this contract and if so who is the COTR?

Answer:  No.  The COTR will be assigned after contract award.

20. Ref. Para. 3.1.3.1, Anomaly Investigation:

a. Question:  Will the contractor be required to report accidents, mishaps, close calls or other incidents under EWR 127-1 and NFS 1852.223-70?

Answer:  NASA requires reporting as indicated by NFS 1852.223.70.  The 30 SW defines reporting requirements for its needs at VAFB.

b. Question:  Does AFI 91204 (Safety Investigations and Reports) still take precedence for accident reporting on National Ranges?

Answer:  Air Force requirements would take precedence, but NASA reserves the right to conduct an independent investigation.

21. Question:  General:   Please note that the offeror operates to a tailored version of EWR 127-1 at our Vandenberg AFB facility.  The 30th Space Wing has granted the offeror safety authority within our fence line and has approved our tailored version of the Air Force Safety Regulation.  We will gladly work with NASA regarding mission specific tailoring of our Safety Manual, however, any changes require Air Force approval as well.

Answer:  Mission specific tailoring of EWR 127-1 would also be acceptable.  A KSC assessment of the tailored EWR will be required.  However, it may be more efficient to reference the tailored EWR in the offeror’s Safety Manual, if only minimal tailoring is needed.   
22.  Question:  Paragraph 2.2.3.5 (Data System), Page 5:  This SOW paragraph was modified on previous NASA procurements to reflect that “The Contractor shall provide access to the 30th Communications Squadron (30 CS) SONET data transport system capable of routing data from the cleanroom to external locations such as Bldg. 836 and SLC-2.  The Contractor shall provide T-1 interfaces to the SONET system.  The system shall have either . . . . .”.  We recommend that the same wording be used for the AURA RFQ.

Answer:  Noted.  Reference SOW change of “NASCOM” to “NISN.”
23. Question:  Paragraph 2.3 (Services), Page 7:  define the timing of the required propellant sampling.  Propellants are received at VAFB from the U.S. Air Force vendor with certifications stating compliance with the required specification.  Is subsequent sampling required at VAFB?  If so, why and when?

Answer: Yes, subsequent sampling is required.  The timing of the sampling is after the set-up and checkout of the Propellant Loading System and prior to the propellant loading operation.
24.  Question:  What is the proposed work schedule for the following holidays:

a. Thanksgiving and day after

b. Christmas Day

c. New Years Day

Answer:  The proposed holiday work schedule will include days off for Thanksgiving Day through the following Sunday, and Christmas Day through New Year’s Day; however, these 12 days may become work days in case of contingency operations.

25. Paragraph 1.0 (Data Requirements List), Page 2    
Question:  DRL Item 5 – footnote indicates that Mishap Reports shall be reported verbally within 1 hour with a written follow-up within 1 hour.  Believe this is a typographical error and should be 5 days per the earlier RFQ requirements.

Answer: This is not a typographical error .  NPG 8621.1, NASA Procedures and Guidelines for Mishap and Close-Call Reporting, Investigating, and Recordkeeping, states mishaps shall be reported within one hour, with a written follow-up to the phone call an hour later.
26. Question:  Will the contractor have to follow EWR 127-1 if the Air Force has already 

      approved a tailored version of this document?

Answer: No, if the tailored EWR is adequate.  Any identified concerns would be resolved by all.

27. Question:  If tailored version is acceptable, will the document list be amended after award?

Answer: Yes.

28. Question:  Does EWR 127-1 or NPG 8715.3 take precedence, since they are both listed as applicable documents?

Answer: The Mission Specific Tailored EWR will be the compliance document for facility systems and operations, as processing is occurring in a commercial facility on Air Force property.  NPG 8715.3 is also identified as an applicable document because it contains certain procedural requirements (e.g., mishap reporting, variance processing, etc.) required by NASA.  Identification and referenced to these areas can be incorporated during Mission Specific Tailoring.

29. Question:  Has ISO standards for Airborne Particulate Cleanliness and Classes in Cleanroom and Clean Zones replaced FED STD 209E? FED STD 209E is not listed in Applicable Documents, but is listed in Appendix D, Table D-2. 

Answer:  Yes, ISO standards have replaced the FED STD.  However, the FED STD 209E is also still being used by AURA.

30. Question:  Requirement No. 12, Page 2:  please specify what network equipment the PPF is to provide vs. that which will be provided by NGST/NASA (i.e., is there any equipment requirement beyond the site cabling between the PPF and administrative areas and the network drops in the work areas?).  Please define the work areas listed in Items (b) and (c) (size and proximity to other work areas).

Answer:  For Requirement No. 12, the PPF is to provide the following network equipment:  eight fiber converters, six 24-Port 10/100 Mbit Ethernet switches, and four 8-Port 10/100 Mbit Ethernet switches.
If the offeror’s complex was to be used for AURA processing, the NASA/GSFC, NASA/KSC, and Instrument Providers would most likely occupy the Building 1036 offices, and the Northrop Grumman Space Technology (NGST) Program Management and Systems Engineers would occupy the Building 1030 offices.  The NGST Test Operations and Test Engineering personnel offices would probably have to be located in additional temporary office space adjacent to the Building 1032 Highbay and Control Rooms.
31. Question:  Requirement No. 14, Page 2:  please define the work area listed as “PPF Instrument Provider Area” (size and proximity to other work areas).
Answer:  The PPF Instrument Provider Area is an office area set aside for the instrument providers as designated by the Spacecraft Project.  The area will be adjacent to other Spacecraft Project office Areas.  Approximate size of the area is 1,000 sq. ft.  Also reference answers (26, 27, 28).
32. Question:  Requirement No. 20, Page 4:  please specify the total size (area) of the conduit to be provided between the PPF Control Room and the PPF High Bay?
Answer:  The total area of the conduits between the PPF Control Room and the PPF High Bay should be no less than 100 square inches.
33. Question:  Requirements Nos. 22, 25, and 27, Pages 4 and 5:  please clarify which party (PPF or Boeing) is responsible for ordering the T-1 circuits between the PPF and SLC-2?

Answer:  NASA will be responsible for the T-1 circuits between the PPF and SLC-2, not the PPF nor Boeing.  

34. Question:  Requirement Nos. 40 and 42, Pages 6 and 7:  please verify that NASA TM will assist in the configuration and verification of the RF links between the PPF and SLC-2, consistent with previous missions processed at the offeror’s facility.

Answer:  Yes, NASA will assist with the RF Link Configuration and Verification Tests between the PPF and SLC-2 consistent with previous missions.

35. Question:  Requirement No. 64, Page 9:  please define the work areas specified in Item (b).

36. Question:  Requirement No. 70, Page 10:  please define the work areas specified in Items (2) and (3).

37. Question:  Requirement Nos 87, 90 and 102, Pages 12-14:  please define the work areas specified as “Test & Data Analysis Areas” and “I & T Office Areas.”

Answers (35, 36, & 37):

These three questions pertain to differentiating between different spacecraft disciplines or “areas.”  Each offeror will have to generically respond to these particular items as to whether there are any control room or office areas that would NOT have the capabilities requested,  therefore, limiting our assignment of any particular discipline to that area.  
38. Question:  Requirement No. 98, Page 13:  please verify that this requirement is in addition to Requirement No. 90 on same page.
Answer: Yes, they are separate requirements.
39. Question:  Requirement No. 110, Page 15:  please specify what network equipment the PPF is to provide vs. that which will be provided by NGST/NASA (i.e., is there any equipment requirement beyond the site cabling between the PPF and administrative areas and the network drops in the work areas?).  Will LAN interfaces be similar to previous NASA missions processed?

Answer:  For Requirement No. 110, the PPF is to provide the following network equipment:  two fiber converters, one 24-Port 10/100 Mbit Ethernet switch, and one 8-Port 10/100 Mbit Ethernet switch.  LAN interfaces should be similar to previous NASA missions.

40. Question:  Requirement No. 113, Page 16:  please define the work area specified as “S/C Instrument Provider Area(s).”

Answer:  The PPF Instrument Provider Area is an office area set aside for the instrument providers as designated by the Spacecraft Project.  The area will be adjacent to other Spacecraft Project office Areas.  Approximate size of the area is 1,000 square feet.  Reference Answers (35, 36, & 37).
41. Question:  Requirement No. 1100, Page 18:  please verify that 53 lockers are required and that it is not a configuration carryover.

Answer:  There are no minimum number of lockers required for AURA.  Requirement No. 1100 has been modified to remove reference to number of lockers required.
42. Question:  Requirement No. 1103, Page 20:  please clarify the difference (if any) between positive pressure and differential pressure.

Answer:  The issue of positive vs. differential pressure is unique to one facility.  The Cell is positive to the Transfer Aisle, which in turn is positive to the outside environment.  So differential pressure is the difference between the Cell and the Transfer Aisle.

43. Question:  Requirement No. 1112, Page 22:  please clarify whether or not NASA will provide NOMEX suits following S/C propellant loading as they have on past missions processed at the offeror’s facility.  Quantity of suits specified (125) does not seem adequate based on amount of office space required.

Answer:  Yes, NASA will provide the NOMEX suits following the S/C propellant loading.  The quantity of suits is not directly related to the amount of office space required since clean room access is very limited following S/C propellant loading.
44. Question:  Requirement No. 1114, Page 23:  Room No. reference does not apply to all facilities.

Answer:  Requirement has been modified to remove Room No. reference.
45. Question:  Requirement No. 1201a, Page 24:  assumes the S/C transporter is taken into the PPF High Bay.  What is minimum footprint required for removal of the S/C from the shipping container?

Answer:  Minimum footprint of shipping container is 31’ 8" L x 13’ 8" W x 13’2" H.
46. Question:  Requirement No. 1202, Page 24:  please define minimum size required for the Precision Cleaning Room.

Answer:  The minimum size required is 120 square feet.

47. Question:  Requirement Nos 1203 and 1203d, Pages 25 and 27:  please define segregation requirements for NGST personnel as it relates to office accommodations (how many people in how many separate areas). 

Answer:  This was in reference to configuration at a particular facility.  Another facility to provide room for this amount and NGST will segregate depending on # of rooms/space provided.  Reference Answers (35, 36, & 37).
48. Question:  Requirement Nos 1203a and 1203b, Page 26:  are separate office areas required for NASA KSC and NASA GSFC personnel, or can they share a common area?

Answer:  GSFC and KSC can share a common area.

49. Question:  Requirement Nos 1203e and 1203f, Pages 28 and 29:  please clarify the differences between these two requirements?  Are separate areas required or is it one in the same?  Is 1203f strictly defining the requirements for the test team during propellant loading operations?

Answer:  The requirements in 1203e relate to the Control Room.  The Requirements in 1203f relate to a separate area that was used as the control room for the fueling operations only.  Separate areas are required.  Yes, 1203f strictly defines area used during propellant loading set-up, check-out and operations.

50. Question:  Requirement No. 1206, Page 30:  is this a separate room or part of the Control Room configured as a small conference area?
Answer:  At one facility this was a small room, 150 sq. ft. off of the main conference room.  The requirement should be provide additional small conference room of NLT 150 Sq. ft. in addition to a main conference area.

51. Question:  Requirement No. 1209, Page 30:  large spacecraft containers have been stored in Bldg. 836 during past missions.  Is this an option for AURA as well?

Answer:  Yes.

52. Question:  Requirement No. 1211, Page 30:  please define required freezer capacity.

Answer:  Four cubic-feet, -8 degrees F.
53. Question:  Requirement No. 1211a, Page 30:  define the size of the area and the environmental conditioning requirements for the Instrument Providers GSE storage.

Answer:  Instrument Providers GSE storage area should be adjacent to the cleanroom and the area should be roughly 450 sq. ft.  It must be covered and environmentally controlled, but it does not need to be a clean area.
54. Question:  Requirement No. 1212, Page 31:  define location of the limited stock access area as it relates to other work areas.

Answer:  The limited stock area should be adjacent to the cleanroom.

55. Question:  Requirement No. 1214 and 1217, Pages 31 and 32:  please clarify size of required High Bay processing area.  (Note:  One PPF does not have either a PPF High Bay hallway nor an Airlock ramp)

Answer: This requirement pertains to Cell 3 for spacecraft processing and Cell 2 for fueling at one facility.  AURA requires Cell 3 at one facility or the East Highbay at another facility for P/L processing and AURA requires the use of Cell 2 at one facility or the West Highbay at another facility for fueling.
56. Question:  Requirement No. 1218, Page 33:  please define required size of cable pass-through area between the PPF Control Room and the High Bay.  What is the maximum allowable cable-run distance between these two areas?

Answer:  Cable pass through must be at least 100 square inches.  Maximum cable run between control room and high bay is 100 feet.
57. Question:  Requirement No. 1221, Page 33:  please define access platform requirements as stated requirement is applicable to one facility.

Answer:  No access platforms will be required by the AURA project.
59. Question:  
58. Requirement No. 1301, Page 33:  stated requirement is applicable to one facility.  The other is a 100% containment facility.

Answer:  MSEE (Minor Spill Emergency Exhaust) mode is a unique aspect at one facility.  (The air handler for the cells can be put in an exhaust mode rather than re-circulate the air.)  AQUA chose to use this feature for their propellant loading.  It is not a generic facility requirement for AURA.

59. Question:  Requirement No. 1302, Page 34:  please note that certain PPF bridge cranes make use of RF Control Pendants.

Answer:  Noted.  Please reference Requirement No. 1302a.  S/C and instrument EMI/EMC testing results will need to be discussed with the PPF in order to ensure that there are no susceptibility issues regarding any facility RF emissions.  
60. Question:  Requirement No. 1401, Page 37:  is this requirement based strictly on in-house capabilities or does it include use of outside vendors?
Answer:  Use of outside vendors/subcontractors by the contractor is acceptable.
61. Question:  Requirement No. 1402, Page 37:  please clarify why this unit is required to be explosion-proof as it will be manned at all times during operation.

Answer:  If the vacuum system is not operated during propellant operations, and its use can be prevented (locked-out, disconnected, etc.); it is not required to be explosion-proof or hazard-proof.  (Note that relying on a system to be manned at all times does not satisfy NFPA requirements for hazard-proofing.)
62. Question:  Requirement No. 1407a, Page 38:  please define manlift requirements rather than providing make and model numbers.  What is the required reach and capacity of the units?  Stated manlifts for Boeing are not consistent with their prior operations conducted at one facility.

Answer:  Spacecraft Project will bring their own manlifts.  Boeing will require 2 manlift(s) with maximum reach of 30 ft. high and maximum capacity of 500 lbs. for assembling the transportation can by hand.
63. Question:  Requirement No. 1409, Page 38:  please verify requirement for Hydraset.  NGST personnel stated they did not require this support from the PPF.

Answer:  Requirement is valid.
64. Question:  Requirement No. 1450, Page 39:  please define the concept of operations that requires the use of two overhead bridge cranes.  Please clarify whether the stated proofload requirements apply to bridge cranes or just slings/handling equipment.  Stated proofload requirements are not consistent with CalOSHA and ANSI standards.  Do you mean 2x maximum expected mission load or rated load (if applicable to cranes)?

Answer:  No dual-crane operations will be required.  Annual crane load tests shall be performed in accordance with EWR 127-1 requirements, and certification period must be valid throughout processing.  The lifting and handling equipment requirements identified in Requirement 1450 (proof load tested to 2 times the rated load) applies to slings and lifting devices.
66. Question:  
65. Requirement No. 1451, Page 39:  stated requirement assumes a certain concept of operations that may or may not be optimal based on the offeror’s PPF layout.  Description of required lifting operations would be beneficial.

Answer:  All references to specific opertions have been deleted.  Note that all lifting operations will remain within the capability parameters of any facility.
67. Question:  
66. Requirement No. 1453, Page 40:  please verify stated load rating and tine length for the electric forklift.

Answer:  At one facility, the floor of the processing Cells is about five feet above the floor of the Transfer Aisle so an electric forklift of these specifications was required to get MGSE from the Transfer Aisle Floor to the Cell floor.  Since everything at another facility is on one level we shouldn’t need an electric forklift.  Everything that did not require hoisting or lifting to another level was rollable.

67.  Question:  Requirement No. 1600, Page 46:  please clarify why at 50 KVA UPS unit is required when the stated load is only 29KVA.  Please verify that a UPS unit is really required.  (Note:  The offeror has provided such capability in the past based on stated program requirements only to have the customers bring their own units to the PPF)

Answer:  The estimated load (29KVA) is the current nominal measured power, however when taking in worst case scenarios and power ratings of GSE the 50 KVA UPS will provide us with the necessary power with margin if this situation was to happen.  The requirement remains 50 KVA UPS.
68. Question:  Requirement No. 1600a, Page 46:  please verify requirement for UPS unit.

Answer:  UPS is a valid requirement.

69. Question:  Requirement No. 1600b, Page 47:  please clarify location for this receptacle (specified as Level 69).

Answer:  Receptacle needs to be in the payload processing area near ground level.
70. Question:  Requirement No. 1700, Page 47:  please verify that you want the PPF to provide this support rather than NASA.
Answer:  Yes, it is the PPF’s responsibility.
71.  Question:  Ref. Table D-1.  Aura Communications Support Requirement Matrix

Question:   Will NASA provide scope of work for Requirements No. 14 & No. 113 for final pricing?

Answer:  The essential information for bidders is already provided within Requirements No. 14 and 113.  The TBDs are just placeholders to identify what end equipment will be connected to the requested infrastructure communications cabling.  Additional costs would only be associated with the cable run lengths for the end equipment (this connectivity is the responsibility of the end user, the Aura project personnel, not the bidder).

72. Ref. Table D-2. Aura Operations Support Requirements Matrix, Req. 1410

a. Question:  “Provide support personnel for two (2) shifts per day, seven day per week…” How many hours per shift are required?

Answer: Shifts are nine hour each.

b. Question:  “…except for an 11-day period and a 2-day period where 24-hour support will be required.” Is it to be assumed that this 13-day (total) period is during critical operations or is it for some other purpose?  If other, what purpose?

Answer: The 13-day (total) is normal checkout operations.

73. Ref. Table D-2. Aura Operations Support Requirements Matrix, Req. 1701

Question:  Does NASA require 24/7 Facility Controller Support from IFO to launch for security and access?

a. Answer: Yes.
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